

Enforcement, Investigations, and Intervention Committee Meeting Supplemental Materials

BRN Enforcement, Investigations, and Intervention Committee | January 22, 2025

Enforcement, Investigations, and Intervention Committee January 22, 2025

Table of Contents

3.0	Review and vote on whether to approve previous meeting's minutes:				
	3.1	October 17, 2024	4		
5.0	Informati	on Only: Investigations Division updates	14		
6.0	Information Only: Intervention Program updates				
	6.1	 Information Only: Presentation by the Executive Officer regarding cases affected by the motion during the August 2024 Board meeting (in which the Board directed: Suspend the imposition of the requirement that participants work in direct patient care, unless there is additional evidence of patient safety issues. Suspend the imposition of the requirement that participants work passing narcotics, unless there is additional evidence of patient safety issues. If an IEC recommendation extends length in the program beyond three years, the Executive Officer must review and examine the evidence.) 	20		
	6.2	Discussion and possible action: Regarding the reestablishment of up to approximately five (5) Intervention Evaluation Committees to meet program needs	23		
	6.3	Discussion and possible action: Regarding the Intervention Program Subcommittee charter	25		



Agenda Item 3.0

Review and vote on whether to approve previous meeting minutes

BRN Enforcement, Investigations, and Intervention Committee | January 22, 2025

STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS ENFORCEMENT, INVESTIGATIONS, AND INTERVENTION CO DRAFT **MEETING MINUTES**



Date: October 17, 2024

3:30 p.m. Start Time: 3:30 p.m.

Location: NOTE: Pursuant to the provisions of Government Code section 11133

a physical meeting location was not being provided.

The Board of Registered Nursing held a public meeting via a

teleconference platform.

Thursday, October 17, 2024 - BRN Enforcement, Investigations, and Intervention Committee Meeting

3:30 p.m. 1.0 Call to Order/Roll Call/Establishment of a Quorum

> Patricia "Tricia" Wynne, Esq., Chairperson, called the meeting to order at: 3:30 p.m. All members present. Quorum established at 3:30 p.m.

Committee Patricia "Tricia" Wynne, Esq. - Chairperson

Members: Roi "David" Lollar

Alison Cormack

BRN Staff: Loretta "Lori" Melby, RN, MSN – Executive Officer

Shannon Johnson. Enforcement Division Chief – Staff Liaison

3:32 p.m. 2.0 Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda; Items for Future Agendas

> Note: The Committee may not discuss or take action on any matter raised during the Public Comment section that is not included on this agenda, except to decide whether to place the matter on the agenda of

a future meeting. (Gov. Code, §§ 11125 & 11125.7, subd. (a).)

Public Comment George Aulson IV – He is in the probation program. He wanted to for Agenda Item follow up on an issue he raised during the last BRN meeting about 2.0: internation travel particularly in cases of family emergencies such as the death or significant health issue. The board responded in real time

stating there are no travel restrictions now that there are options for saliva testing. This can be found in archived YouTube webcast at 14:30:36 of that meeting. After that meeting, he reached out to his probation monitor for further clarification and the next steps. He was told remote testing is not approved and this response seemed to conflict with what was stated by the board. To resolve this inconsistency, he emailed a board member who responded during the meeting hoping to receive additional clarification. Unfortunately, despite sending two emails, two follow up emails since August's meeting he has not received a response. He's here seeking definitive clarification from the board. Are probation nurses allowed to travel internationally or not? If the answer is no, he respectfully asks the committee to reconsider this policy as a future agenda item. Please consider how unnecessarily cruel it is to prohibit nurses in the program from visiting their families during emergencies. This restriction prevents him from spending precious time with his eight-month-old son who has not yet met his family in Argentina. If the answer is yes, then there's more significant concern the individuals managing his case are not providing him with the accurate consistent information. They cannot demonstrate critical thinking necessary to confirm the board's official stance or seek clarification from the superior when needed. It's essential he receives reliable guidance from those overseeing his probation and without it he's left navigating the process in confusion and frustration which is both unacceptable and unprofessional. He appreciates the board's time and attention to this matter and looks forward to receiving a clear and actionable guidance for international travel for probation nurses.

Executive Officer (EO) Loretta Melby said she will follow up with his probation manager to ensure an appropriate response is given for probation. She clarified that the initial comment about travel was for intervention.

Mary Hegarty – She's been a nurse support group facilitator since 1997 and is one member of the clinical team for the intervention program. She said nurses are people. She recently had lunch with a nurse who successfully completed the intervention program. She had the opportunity to see her develop fully and completely into a healthy nurse. When she saw her at lunch was a woman who couldn't stop crying, was devastated by her last year in the program, an uncertain woman about the program criteria, sadness that information was not given to Maximus clinical team about what was going on. Please consider the damage that has been done by arbitrarily changing the standard that needs to be met by nurses who must stay in the program for one year or more regarding employment requirements.

EO Melby said the board motioned to stop the employment requirement at the August 2024 meeting based on certain requirements being met.

Tamira Bolden – She has been a nurse for over 30 years and am bringing to light things regarding enforcement and possible drug diversion accusations that are placed against someone. She was unfairly accused of drug diversion and suffered for three years under investigation. Luckily in the end was found innocent and everything was dropped but the whole process made her realize she should speak up to be an advocate for change in the system. There was an expert witness who was not vetted and did not understand her practice discipline. There is a lack of due process that took over three years holding her in professional limbo. Once this was completed at trial, she was able to show the accusations were false. She said the documentation in the records was altered and she is unable to sue the healthcare facility. She feels this is not fair and should not be allowed if it was altered. She would like a legal recourse for those falsely accused.

Kevin – He wanted to speak about international travel. His mother-inlaw passed away in Thailand and he was unable to be there. He has a very good probation monitor who is responsive and treats him with kindness and respect. But she was unable to advise him or give him any direction on whether he could go, and it was the issue of testing. This happened within the last month and asks that this be put on a future agenda for a future discussion.

Lolly – She feels like it's harder to make comments these days particularly because as an advance practice nurse trying to make comments and trying to get to the APRN committee. She said there's a subcommittee about enforcement and she know how committee meetings and subcommittees of two people can't have extra people on it. It feels like people in probation and intervention can only comment on their experience at public comment. She thinks that's the problem because they are saying too much of it and it's uncomfortable to hear what's going on. She said there is no other way to know what's going on. The information on the website changes quickly and the documents she was looking for are not on the web any longer. She said the process isn't transparent at all. She wonders how this will all come out to the regular public in the end.

Julie – She's a participant and her comment is about issues with communication because she said 7.0 was removed but it has not been removed. She spoke about information being removed if there are additional patient safety issues and that was not well-defined Maximus

is saying if a nurse diverted meds at any time the participants will pass narcotics while supervised. She said the thought was this would be on a case-by-case basis but as feared it is not. She is not available to comment on this issue later in the meeting and wanted to do it now.

Diane – She also wanted to address passing narcotics.

EO Melby said this will be addressed during agenda item 7.0 and can be spoken about at that time.

3:51 p.m. 3.0 Review and vote on whether to approve previous meeting minutes:

> July 16, 2024

Discussion:

Committee Committee Member Cormack page 21 – change "committee should be making that decision today" she recalls saying "committee should not be making that decision today."

Motion: Patricia Wynne Motion to approve the minutes as amended.

Second: Alison Cormack

Public Comment for Agenda Item

3.0: No Public Requests for Comments

Vote:

N/ /	PW	DL	AC			
Vote:	Υ	Y	Υ			
	Key: Yes: Y No: N Abstain: A Absent for Vote: AB					

Motion Passed

3:53 p.m. 4.0 **Information Only:** Presentation by Department of Consumer Affairs, Procurement Section on the request for proposal process

> Committee Committee Member Alison Cormack asked if this was to review the **Discussion:** process or how this will happen between now and January?

> > EO Melby said this is an overview and cannot discuss how this is going to happen between now and January as it is a confidential process.

Committee Member Cormack asked if the request for proposal (RFP) includes a task developing a transition plan and ensuring handoffs.

EO Melby said that is already included and DCA is working on that. They're working with Maximus and that is in process already.

Public Comment for Agenda Item 4.0:

No Public Requests for Comments

Chair Wynne reordered the agenda to take 7.0

7.0 4:07 p.m.

Information Only: Presentation by the Executive Officer regarding cases in which these requirements were removed or imposed pursuant to the motion during the August 2024 Board meeting in which the Board directed:

- 1. Suspend the imposition of the requirement that participants work in direct patient care, unless there is additional evidence of patient safety
- 2. Suspend the imposition of the requirement that participants work passing narcotics, unless there is additional evidence of patient safety
- 3. If an IEC recommendation extends length in the program beyond three years, the Executive Officer must review and examine the evidence.

Discussion:

Committee Committee Member Wynne doesn't have any questions and appreciates the willingness of EO Melby to do the deep dive into this. She knows there is a learning curve, she's not a patient person and knows it will take time to change this.

> Committee Member Cormack asked 10 were brought forward and 9 were accepted.

EO Melby said 10 individuals asked to be accepted into the Intervention Program and 9 were accepted. 10 were brought before an IEC for a re-evaluation of a petition for completion.

Committee Member Cormack asked there were 15 petitions for unrestricted licenses and 14 were granted?

EO Melby said that means they completed the program.

Committee Member Cormack said congratulations and said another discussion could be to look at the IECs and their meeting frequency during an entire quarter.

EO Melby said IECs are scheduled to meet once every quarter. The number of IECs meeting right now is abnormal to try to get the most people seen and reviewed as soon as possible.

Committee Member Cormack thanked the members of IECs 1, 4, and 12 for doing the extra work.

Committee Member Lollar echoes Committee Member Wynne's comments. He said because there is a learning curve he will be interested to see how the IECs comply further along in the process at a future meeting.

EO Melby said she would share more at the next board meeting and has also asked DCA if training can be developed for the IECs and NSGFs.

Committee Member Wynne would like to agendize this again for the next EIIC meeting to see how things are going.

EO Melby said this will be a standing item for a while.

After Public Comment:

EO Melby said the IEC members are voted upon by the board and not Maximus. The IEC makes a recommendation and staff review the recommendation and it could be returned back to an IEC for reconsideration.

for Agenda Item

Public Comment Diane - a participant, said she wanted to speak about the narcotic passing requirement prior to completing the program. She's been in 7.0: the program for 2 years 8 months and just had an IEC in October. She was told by her case manager that to complete the program she needed to take a bedside nurse job passing narcotics. For the past two years she's been working very happily as an advice nurse from home. She did what was suggested and took a second job in June at a facility that's about an hour and half from where she lives which is a huge burden on her family life and recovery life. She will do whatever it takes, that's what the program has taught her. However, at the October meeting she asked clearly and there was no miscommunication about whether she needs to continue to work the second job to pass narcotics to complete the program. She needs clear direction to move forward in her life. When she got her contract this week, she reviewed it, and nothing was said about whether she needed to continue working the second job. She's had a good clean record with Maximus, zero positive drug tests. She's done everything asked of her and no additional concerns of patient safety. She was a previous diverter but that has not been an issue since she's been in

the program. She has no issues with patient safety. She's asking for clear direction on whether she needs to continue killing herself to meet a requirement that may or may not need to be met for her to complete.

Rita – She wants to thank EO Melby and board members for their work on this and treating them as human beings. She has a friend in the program who fears she will be retaliated against for speaking up. She said there are still opportunities for DECs to find evidence to lengthen someone in the program. She said this has been traumatizing. She said she needs to heal from childhood issues and this program. She said her friend wrote letters to the board and the EO but she attempts to stay quiet so she won't have to endure any more suffering or trauma. She too fears for this. She is thankful for those who are listening to the nurses.

Charlotte – She would like to echo the sentiment of the last two commenters. She's a participant who has been in the program for 2.5 years. She understands there is a learning curve about the patient care component. She said the IECs don't seem to be getting the message. She wonders how long the IECs will take to learn this isn't required. She has a meeting scheduled for December and has the same amount of limbo. She is torn because she has a job teaching obstetrics at a university but is not passing narcotics or doing patient care. She wonders if she has to complete this requirement or will she remain in limbo indefinitely. She wants to know the IECs are informed about the changes.

Julie – participant – Appreciates the follow up to this important item. She wants to know what additional patient safety concerns means and whether Maximus would be able to say a person diverted previously. She is concerned that this mandate is not written down in their contract. She said addiction medicine experts agree that this is not necessary. There is no reason why Maximus should be forcing participants to work in patient care passing narcotics. There is only ignorance and fear. She said it is not fair for participants to wait three to six months for a requirement to be removed by IEC.

Chair Wynne resumed the agenda at item 5.0

4:34 p.m. 5.0 Information Only: Overview of the recruitment and selection process of the Intervention Evaluation Committee Members and Nurse Support Group Facilitators

Committee Committee Member Cormack asked if the IECs have any training. **Discussion:**

Enforcement Chief Shannon Johnson said they started training a couple of years ago. They were going to have a training at the end of the year but it's on hold due to the meetings being held right now. They also held a couple trainings for the NSGFs. They have a handbook for the IEC members and is a standing agenda item in their open meetings with their IECs to incorporate any suggestions or recommendations.

Committee Member Cormack asked if the IEC members sign or acknowledge receipt and understanding and abide by the handbook.

Enforcement Chief Johnson said there is no signature page.

Committee Member Cormack said in a previous role she found it helpful to implement that to ensure the person takes reading it seriously and can be used if there is an issue. She asked about interviewing IEC members if there were pros and cons of doing interviews for IEC members.

Enforcement Chief Johnson said she doesn't know if there's a con to interviewing them. When they get to the board members, they've met the criteria and expertise required and they have been vetted.

Committee Member Cormack said she would feel more comfortable with voting if some members of the board interviewed them first. She also thinks the application can be improved. She thought the NSGFs were independent but now knows they are recruited and managed by Maximus.

Enforcement Chief Johnson said they are recruited, and they haven't had any new facilitators for the last few years. They are independent and can set their own rates to charge. The board doesn't have any authority in that capacity and the board may consider changing the regulations.

Committee Member Cormack said that could be discussed at a future meeting. She would like a survey to be created and given to participants to see how the program is doing and how it could be improved.

Enforcement Chief Johnson said there is a survey available for all participants inside their portal.

Committee Member Cormack asked who sees the survey results.

Enforcement Chief Johnson said Maximus sees the surveys.

Committee Member Cormack said this could be an opportunity for EO Melby.

Committee Member Patricia Wynne said she didn't realize the participants paid for NSGFs. She would like to see a survey of costs for the meetings because participants are required to attend every week.

EO Melby said this information was provided previously and one meeting is free.

Enforcement Chief Johnson said the range is \$0-80 per person per month. She said there are up to 14 participants in a meeting.

Committee Member David Lollar appreciates what Committee Member Cormack said and that is the direction we should go. He is bewildered that the composition of the IEC and there being gaps in logic or common sense. He thinks applications should be reviewed better in the future.

Public Comment Nurse Mary – She has been involved with the board and very grateful for Agenda Item for many aspects of her career. She said those that are involved with **5.0:** NSGs and IECs are clinical people and yet the person in charge of this process is not a clinical person. Years ago, the provider, Maximus, used to be part of this process and that concerns her. The second part is the education of the IEC members is done by non-clinical people.

> Charlotte – Is glad the board is looking into the IEC members. She said the members are woefully ignorant, rude, disrespectful, accusatory and she knows this program is supposed to be an alternative to discipline and it doesn't feel that way. She feels like she's being interrogated as a witness at a murder trial. It would be nice to know who is training these individuals. Again, with no clinical background, they seem to have very little understanding what has brought the members here. She's glad costs are being considered. She knows people who chose probation instead of intervention because they could not afford to be off work. She was not allowed to go back to work for the first nine months. Luckily, she has a spouse who worked, and they were able to squeak by. All the drug testing is incredibly expensive and the NSG meetings. She pays additional fees, and everyone should be able to take advantage of this program and the cost becomes very exclusive for people not able to.

Where's the Data BRN – She appreciates the members. She wants to share her experience with this when she tried to be part of a NSG

when she started probation she cried. She's a crier and the NSGF said she's not good with the criers and gave another NSGF name which she appreciated because it's important to her. This is so important to her to do what she needs to complete. She loves her nursing support leader. She's on disability and is not well. She needs there to be a little heart to these things because this is hard.

6.0 Information Only: Presentation on the Intervention Program

statistical

Committee Agenda item not presented at this meeting but will be presented at the

Discussion: board meeting in November 2024.

Public Comment

for Agenda Item: No Public Requests for Comments

4:57 p.m. 8.0 Adjourn

➤ Patricia Wynne, Chairperson, adjourned the meeting at 4:57 p.m.

Patricia Wynne, Esq.

EIIC Chairperson

Submitted by: Accepted by:

Loretta Melby, MSN, RN Executive Officer

California Board of Registered Nursing California Board of Registered Nursing



Agenda Item 5.0

Information only: Investigations Division updates

BRN Enforcement, Investigations, and Intervention Committee | January 22, 2025

BOARD OF REGISTERED NURSING Agenda Item Summary

AGENDA ITEM: 5.0 DATE: January 22, 2025

ACTION REQUESTED: Information Only: Investigations Division Update

REQUESTED BY: Patricia Wynne, Esq., Chairperson

General Information

The Office of Organizational Improvement (OIO) continues working with the Investigations Division (Investigations), assessing and mapping workflows, timeframes, and procedures to streamline and improve internal processes. The OIO team works with Subject Matter Experts (SMEs) from each unit and staffing level. Investigations will continue to report on the progress of this project in future meetings.

On November 19, 2024, Board of Registered Nursing (BRN) and the Office of Attorney General (OAG) conducted the fourth of a four-part and final Deputy Attorney General (DAG) training series. The series included topics about the Administrative Process, General Nursing Practice, Unprofessional Conduct, Report Writing, Advanced Practice Nursing, Records, Evidence, and Med Spas/Nursing Corporations. In attendance were Investigations, Enforcement Division, and Department of Consumer Affairs, Division of Investigation (DOI). It is anticipated, the DAG training series will be conducted annually.

Investigations

Investigations continue to adhere to Recommendation 7 of the 2016-046 audit by the California State Auditor. As of January 3, 2025, the full time Special Investigators have an average of 28 active cases. Due to the high caseloads, the Supervising Special Investigator 1s and the Deputy Chief continue to actively work cases. Investigations received 80 cases in December 2024, which is a decrease from the 104 cases received in November 2024. Investigations is exploring multiple options to address the high caseload and continues to actively recruit for one (1) full-time position in the central region and limited-term Investigators statewide.

Table A - Investigations

Investigations	07/01/20 thru 12/31/20	07/01/21 thru 12/31/21	07/01/22 thru 12/31/22	07/01/23 thru 12/31/23	07/01/24 thru 12/31/24
BRN Cases Referred	351	532	533	386	672
BRN Cases Pending	369	470	573	566	821
BRN Cases Completed	471	472	416	459	500
DOI Cases Referred	266	367	238	275	155
DOI Cases Pending	406	543	418	453	510
DOI Cases Completed	313	270	319	210	154

If you would like more information on our investigation statistics, please go to https://www.dca.ca.gov/data/enforcement_performance.shtml

NEXT STEPS: Continue to Monitor

PERSONS TO CONTACT: Nichole Bowles, Investigations Division Deputy Chief

(916) 597-7345

INVESTIGATIONS PROCESS STATISTICS REFERENCE GUIDE

Investigations

- BRN cases referred
 - o This is the total number of cases that were referred to BRN Investigations.
- BRN cases pending
 - o Total number of cases pending with BRN Investigations.
- BRN cases completed
 - The total number of cases that have been completed by BRN Investigations.
- DOI cases referred
 - o This is the total number of cases that were referred to DOI.
- DOI cases pending
 - o Total number of cases pending with DOI
- DOI cases completed
 - The total number of cases that have been completed by DOI.

Table A

Investigations statistical data FY to date. See guide above for reference.



Agenda Item 6.0

Information only: Intervention Program updates

BRN Enforcement, Investigations, and Intervention Committee | January 22, 2025

BOARD OF REGISTERED NURSING Agenda Item Summary

AGENDA ITEM: 6.0 DATE: January 22, 2025

ACTION REQUESTED: Information Only: Intervention Program Update

REQUESTED BY: Patricia Wynne, Esq., Chairperson

<u>Intervention</u>

Management has been attending all Intervention Evaluation Committee (IEC) meetings, providing education and support to IEC members and participants, and identifying possible gaps in the regulation for the Intervention Program.

At the February 28-29, 2024, Board meeting, the Board voted to allow board staff to begin drafting regulatory language for revision and/or additions to the <u>California Code of</u> Regulations (CCR), title 16, Article 4.1 Intervention Program Guidelines.

The Intervention vendor contract with Maximus expired on December 31, 2024. The Department of Consumer Affairs (DCA) awarded the new Intervention vendor contract to Premier Health Group. Premier Health Group is working with DCA and eight (8) healing arts boards including the Board of Registered Nursing to continue the transition with minimal impact to participants.

The Board continues to recruit IEC members with knowledge and experience in substance use disorder (SUD) treatment, recovery, and mental health. Board staff put forward a request to this committee (agenda item 6.2) regarding the reestablishment of up to five (5) additional IECs.

To apply for an IEC position, you can find the application on our website at https://rn.ca.gov/intervention.

If you would like more information on our enforcement statistics, please go to https://www.dca.ca.gov/data/enforcement performance.shtml.

NEXT STEPS: Continue to Monitor

PERSONS TO CONTACT: Shannon Johnson, Enforcement Division Chief

(916) 515-5265

BOARD OF REGISTERED NURSING Agenda Item Summary

AGENDA ITEM: 6.1 DATE: January 22, 2025

ACTION REQUESTED: Information only: Presentation by the Executive Officer (EO) regarding

cases affected by the motion during the August 2024 Board meeting

REQUESTED BY: Patricia Wynne, Esq., Chairperson

BACKGROUND:

During the Board meeting on Thursday August 22, 2024, the Board made a motion that directed Board executive management to provide an update to the EIIC regarding Intervention Program participants who had these requirements removed or imposed pursuant to the Board's motion:

- 1. Suspend the imposition of the requirement that participants work in direct patient care, unless there is additional evidence of patient safety issues.
- 2. Suspend the imposition of the requirement that participants work passing narcotics, unless there is additional evidence of patient safety issues.
- 3. If an Intervention Evaluation Committee (IEC) recommendation extends length in the program beyond three years, the Executive Officer must review and examine the evidence.

The Board further directed that, in any cases in which the direct patient care and/or narcotics requirements were the only requirements preventing a participant from successfully completing the program, and where those requirements were removed pursuant to this motion, that board executive management should work with the Intervention Program Manager to have such cases presented to an IEC as soon as practicable for consideration of program completion.

As it relates to the August 21-22, 2024, Board motion above where the IEC is directed to consider program completion, Uniform Standard Number 12 identifies criteria to petition for a full and unrestricted license:

- 1. Demonstrated sustained compliance with the terms of the disciplinary order, if applicable. (This is not applicable to our Intervention Program Participants.)
- 2. Demonstrated successful completion of recovery program, if required. (This is applicable to our Intervention Program Participants)
- 3. Demonstrated a consistent and sustained participation in activities that promote and support their recovery including, but not limited to, ongoing support meetings, therapy, counseling, relapse prevention plan, and community activities.
- 4. Demonstrated that he or she is able to practice safely.
- 5. Continuous sobriety for three (3) to five (5) years.

August 2024 - Board Motion Data

The below reflects data related to the approved Board motion from August 22, 2024, through December 31, 2024. December 12-13, 2024, was the last IEC meeting held in 2024 with the former recovery vendor, Maximus. Premier Health Group became the new recovery vendor as of January 1, 2025.

Successful Completion(s)	Totals			
Petitioned for successful completion	68			
Granted successful completion	50			
Reviews sent to the Executive Officer (EO)	30			
EO approved IEC recommendation(s)	7			
EO referred to a re-reviewing IEC	23			
Intervention Program New Applicant(s)	Totals			
Petitioned for acceptance ¹	24			
Granted acceptance ²	19			
Denied or withdrew request for acceptance ³	5			
Program Length	Totals			
Intake date greater than three (3) years	22			
Program sobriety date greater than three (3) years	12			
Program Milestones	Low - High / Average			
Intake date to IEC acceptance date	5 - 182 / 71 (days)			
Intake date to successful completion	3.1 - 7.6 / 3.7 (years)			
Program sobriety date to successful completion	3.0 - 4.5 / 3.4 (years)			

Definitions:

- Intake date The date that the recovery vendor conducted the initial intake interview of the IP applicant.
- IEC acceptance date The date that the IEC accepts the applicant as a participant into the IP.
- Successful completion the date that the IEC deemed the participant completed based on Uniform Standards.
- Program sobriety date The first documented negative urine test after participant begins random
 drug testing with the Board's recovery vendor. A personal sobriety is not the same as the program
 sobriety date. The personal sobriety date is the date that the participant reports is their first date of
 sobriety.

¹ One applicant was deferred to a future IEC and then denied at the next meeting due to ineligibility.

² One participant was accepted but was subsequently terminated from the IP during the same time period.

³ One applicant withdrew their request for acceptance during the IEC review.

The below reflects general IP data for the period of July – December 2024 based on information provided by Maximus:

Maximus Intervention Program Data						
	Jul 2024	Aug 2024	Sep 2024	Oct 2024	Nov 2024	Dec 2024
Beginning total IP participants	231	229	219	209	191	173
Intake(s) completed by Maximus of RNs requesting admission to the IP regardless of IEC acceptance or denial	4	8	6	6	2	5
Successful completion(s)	5	18	14	18	18	5
Termination(s) for other than successful completion(s)	1	0	2	6	2	3
Ending total number of IP participants	229	219	209	191	173	170
IP participants seen by an IEC (all applicants and participants listed on an IEC agenda regardless of if a recommendation(s) decision was made by the IEC)	67	72	31	85	56	48

RESOURCES:

NEXT STEPS: Place on agenda

FISCAL IMPACT, IF

ANY:

None

PERSON(S) TO Loretta Melby CONTACT: Executive Officer

California Board of Registered Nursing

Loretta.Melby@dca.ca.gov

BOARD OF REGISTERED NURSING Agenda Item Summary

AGENDA ITEM: 6.2 DATE: January 22, 2025

ACTION REQUESTED: Discussion and possible action regarding the reestablishment of up to

approximately five (5) Intervention Evaluation Committees to meet

program needs

REQUESTED BY: Patricia Wynne, Esq., Chairperson

BACKGROUND: The Intervention Program is an alternative to discipline for California

registered nurses (RNs) whose practice may be impaired by a substance use disorder (SUD) and/or mental health illness. The statutory guidelines are found in Division 2, Chapter 6, Article 3.1, Business and Professions

Code (BPC) 2770-2770.14.

A component of the Intervention Program is the Intervention Evaluation Committees (IECs). BPC section 2770.2 outlines the authority and composition of the IECs. Each IEC shall have the following composition: three (3) registered nurses (RNs); one (1) physician; and one (1) public member. The IEC committee members must have knowledge in the field of chemical dependency/addiction and/or mental health. BPC section 2770.8 identifies the following duties and responsibilities of the IECs:

- (a) To evaluate those registered nurses who request participation in the program according to the guidelines prescribed by the board, and to make recommendations.
- (b) To review and designate those treatment services to which registered nurses in an intervention program may be referred.
- (c) To receive and review information concerning a registered nurse participating in the program.
- (d) To consider in the case of each registered nurse participating in a program whether he or she may with safety continue or resume the practice of nursing.
- (e) To call meetings as necessary to consider the requests of registered nurses to participate in an intervention program, and to consider reports regarding registered nurses participating in a program.
- (f) To make recommendations to the program manager regarding the terms and conditions of the intervention agreement for each registered nurse participating in the program, including treatment, supervision, and monitoring requirements.

Previously the Board had 14 IECs; however, over the past several years, the Board closed five (5) IECs due to decreasing participation in the Intervention Program (the decrease in participation is not limited to California but is generally seen on a national level for other state boards of nursing as well).

The IECs are scheduled to meet a minimum of once every three months. With only nine (9) IECs, it was necessary to hold some of the meetings over a two-day period. Program participants are permitted to attend IEC meetings remotely; however, committee members of the IECs must attend in person to remain in compliance with the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act. Due to several factors, the Board experienced the inability to establish or maintain quorum. Quorum issues may result in delays in the evaluation of participants.

After review, it was determined that the proposed additional IECs would allow more frequent meetings and perhaps more active participation by IEC members, enhancing efficiencies in carrying out their roles and responsibilities. Board staff is seeking approval to reestablish up to five (5) IECs, with the following desired goals:

- Reduce number of participants per IEC.
- Reduce cases reviewed at each meeting, allowing the IEC members to thoroughly review and discuss each participant.
- Reduce the need for two-day and special IEC meetings.
- Increase the availability for applicants to be reviewed by an IEC after the completion of their clinical diagnostic evaluation.
- Increase the availability to review potential successful completions, at the next scheduled IEC meeting, once minimum program requirements are met, i.e. 3 years continuous sobriety.
- Increase the availability of meetings such that all participants can be reviewed quarterly or sooner if needed.

NEXT STEPS: Place on agenda

PERSON(S) TO Evon Lenerd Tapps
CONTACT: Assistant Executive

Assistant Executive Officer

California Board of Registered Nursing

Evon.lenerd@dca.ca.gov

BOARD OF REGISTERED NURSING Agenda Item Summary

AGENDA ITEM: 6.3 DATE: January 22, 2025

ACTION REQUESTED: Discussion and possible action: Regarding the Intervention Program

Subcommittee charter

REQUESTED BY: Patricia Wynne, Esq., Chairperson

BACKGROUND: The Intervention Program is an alternative to discipline for California

registered nurses (RNs) whose practice may be impaired by a substance use disorder (SUD) and/or mental health illness. The statutory guidelines are found in Division 2, Chapter 6, Article 3.1, <u>Business and Professions</u> Code (BPC) 2770-2770.14. A component of the Intervention Program is

the Intervention Evaluation Committee (IEC).

During the Board meeting on November 20-21, 2024, the Board passed a motion to establish a Board subcommittee to review applications and participate in the interview process of potential IEC members prior to presentation to the Board for consideration of appointment. Board Member Patricia "Tricia" Wynne and Nilu Patel were appointed to the

Intervention Program Subcommittee.

If the charter is approved by the Enforcement, Investigations and Intervention Committee, the charter will be presented to the full Board

for consideration of adoption.

NEXT STEPS: Place on agenda

FISCAL IMPACT, IF

ANY:

None

PERSON(S) TO Evon Lenerd Tapps

CONTACT: Assistant Executive Officer

California Board of Registered Nursing

Evon.lenerd@dca.ca.gov

The California Board of Registered Nursing's Intervention Program Subcommittee Charter

The mission of the California Board of Registered Nursing (Board or BRN) is to protect the health, safety, and well-being of the public through the fair and consistent application of the statutes and regulations governing nursing practice and education in California. The Board values include effectiveness, integrity, transparency, collaboration and equity.

Background

During the Board meeting on November 20, 2024, the Board voted to form an Intervention Program subcommittee (Subcommittee) to review applications and interview potential Intervention Evaluation Committee (IEC) members for potential future appointment by the Board.

Subcommittee Purpose/Charge

The <u>Intervention Program</u> is an alternative to discipline for California registered nurses (RNs) whose practice may be impaired by a substance use disorder (SUD) and/or mental health illness. The statutory guidelines are found in Division 2, Chapter 6, Article 3.1, <u>Business and Professions Code (BPC) 2770-2770.14</u>. A component of the Intervention Program is the Intervention Evaluation Committee (IEC). BPC section 2770.2(b) identifies the composition of the IEC as follows:

- 1. Three (3) RNs, holding active California licenses, who have demonstrated expertise in the field of chemical dependency or psychiatric nursing.
- 2. One (1) physician, holding an active California license, who specializes in the diagnosis and treatment of addictive diseases or mental illness.
- One (1) public member who is knowledgeable in the field of chemical dependency or mental illness.

Per <u>BPC section 2770.2(c)</u> a majority vote of the Board is required for an appointment to an IEC. An <u>overview</u> of the IECs and their role in the Intervention Program is available on the Board's website. A candidate for appointment to an IEC must submit an <u>application</u> and a curriculum vitae and/or resume.

The application package will be reviewed by Board staff, and if minimum qualifications are met and if there is an IEC vacancy, the package will be presented to the Subcommittee. The Subcommittee will review the application(s) and interview applicant(s), if appropriate. The nominations will be presented to the full Board for review and consideration for appointment to an IEC.

All IEC members shall be for a term of four (4) years, not to exceed two (2) consecutive terms.

Relationship to the Board

The Subcommittee is an advisory subcommittee of the Board and consists of two (2) current Board Members appointed by the Board.

Membership

The Subcommittee members will serve on the Subcommittee until they resign, are removed by the Board, or are no longer a current Board Member.

Meetings

The Subcommittee can meet as frequently as necessary to carry out the charge of the Subcommittee. As the Subcommittee is an advisory body of the Board with fewer than three members, the meetings of the Subcommittee do not need to be noticed or held as public meetings under the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act (Bagley-Keene). However, a report of these meetings and the activities will be presented to the Board in a public meeting conducted under the provisions of Bagley-Keene.

For purposes of the Subcommittee, only the two (2) appointed Board Members can meet and discuss the business of the Subcommittee. The Subcommittee members cannot meet with other Board members to discuss the business of the Subcommittee unless done so in a meeting held in compliance with Bagley-Keene.

Board Staff

BRN staff will regularly support the Subcommittee by providing meeting/interview assistance, advice, consultation, reports/presentations and other forms of support, as requested. Such staff include: the Board's Executive Officer (EO), the Assistant EO, the Chief of Enforcement, Intervention Program Manager, and other staff, as needed.

Review of Subcommittee

All advisory committees/subcommittees of the Board are required to engage in a self-evaluation annually. Annual review of the original goals of the subcommittee should be completed to ensure the work of the subcommittee continues to be relevant to the BRN, licensees, and the public.

Additionally, the subcommittee shall periodically review and update this document to ensure the document remains relevant to current statutes, regulations, the Board's mission and strategic plan, practice of nursing and Intervention Program. At minimum, it will be reviewed and re-approved by the Board at least every four (4) years from the last effective approval date. This document will include a signature page for the Board's President, EO, and the two (2) Subcommittee members with the date once this document is approved by the membership in each review cycle.

DRAFT

Intervention Program SubcommitteeReview and Approval Signature Page

Loretta Melby, RN, MSN Board Executive Officer		
Signature	Date	
Dolores Trujillo, RN Board President		
Signature	 Date	
Patricia Wynne, Esq. Board Member		
Signature	Date	_
Nilu Patel, RN, DNAP, CRNA, APRN, FAANA Board Member		
Signature	 Date	